Legal and Governance

N\iddles@cﬁjgh

moving forward

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND SERVICES SCRUTINY PANEL

Date: Wednesday, 30 November 2022
Time: 10.30 a.m.
Venue: Mandela Room, Town Hall

AGENDA
1. Apologies for Absence
2. Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of interest.

3. Minutes - Adult Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel -
2 November 2022

4. Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board (TSAB) Annual Report
2021/22 and Strategic Business Plan 2022-25

A representative from TSAB will be in attendance to update
Members on the Board’s Annual Report 2021/22 and its
Strategic Business Plan 2022-25.

5. Integration of Health and Social Care - Verbal Update
The Director of Adult Social Care and Health Integration will
provide the panel with a verbal update regarding the

integration of health and social care.

6. The Impact of the Energy and Cost of Living Crises on Caring
for Vulnerable Adults - Verbal Update

The Director of Adult Social Care and Health Integration will
provide the panel with a verbal update regarding the issues
raised at the 5 October 2022 panel meeting.

7. Overview and Scrutiny Board Update
The Chair will provide a verbal update on matters considered

at the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board held on
16 November 2022.

Page 1



8. Date of Next Meeting - 11 January 2023

9. Any other urgent items which in the opinion of the Chair, may
be considered.

Charlotte Benjamin
Director of Legal and Governance Services

Town Hall
Middlesbrough
Tuesday, 22 November 2022

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors J Platt (Chair), G Wilson (Vice-Chair), D Davison, T Higgins, D Jones,
G Purvis, D Rooney, R Sands and J Walker.

Assistance in accessing information

Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information
please contact Chris Lunn, 01642 729742, chris_lunn@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 2



Agenda Item 3

Adult Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel 02 November 2022

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND SERVICES SCRUTINY PANEL

A meeting of the Adult Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel was held on Wednesday, 2 November
2022.

PRESENT: Councillors J Platt (Chair), G Wilson (Vice-Chair), D Davison, D Rooney and
R Sands.

PRESENT BY

INVITATION: Councillor D Coupe.

ALSO IN

ATTENDANCE: E Craigie (Teesside Live).

OFFICERS: C Lunn and E Scollay.

APOLOGIES FOR
ABSENCE: Councillors T Higgins, D Jones, G Purvis and J Walker.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest received at this point in the meeting.

MINUTES - ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND SERVICES SCRUTINY PANEL - 5 OCTOBER
2022

The minutes of the Adult Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel meeting held on 5 October
2022 were submitted and approved as a correct record.

** SUSPENSION OF COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO 5 - ORDER OF BUSINESS

ORDERED that, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule No 5, the panel agreed to vary
the order of business to consider the remaining agenda items as follows: 6, 5, 4, 7 and 8.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD UPDATE

The Chair provided a verbal update on the matters that were considered at the Overview and
Scrutiny Board meeting held on 25 October 2022. Amongst those was an update from
Councillor Coupe, Executive Member for Adult Social Care, Public Health, Public Protection
and Digital Inclusion. As the respective Executive Member for this Scrutiny Panel, the Chair
had invited Councillor Coupe to this meeting to provide details of what had been discussed,
and to provide any further details and/or answer any questions that Members may have.

Councillor Coupe tabled a copy of the presentation slides that were provided at the Overview
and Scrutiny Board meeting and, during discussion, provided the following information with
input from the Director of Adult Social Care and Health Integration:

e Regarding current key issues and the provision of warm spaces, Members heard that
a number of organisations had identified space and work was being undertaken to
increase this list. There were various threads of work taking place both across the
Council (e.g. with Libraries and Community Hubs) and with external organisations
(such as the NHS and Health and Wellbeing Board) in respect of this work. It was
indicated that finding appropriate space in particular areas of the town could pose
some issues. In terms of raising awareness of available space, a Member
commented that it would be useful if a list could be assembled once all places had
been identified, which would also help smaller organisations already offering a space
to publicise this. Consideration was given to the existing support being provided to
individuals, with some agencies already providing space (though not necessarily
referred to as a ‘warm space’). Coordination work, including further discussion around
housing and other related issues, currently continued.

e A pilot project was currently taking place with GP practices and supporting GPs in
relation to identifying cases of domestic abuse. Members discussed changes to
services and the development of the Integrated Care System (ICS).

Page 3



02 November 2022

e In relation to COVID-19 and flu vaccinations, the booster programme continued.
Reference was made to the difficult flu season experienced in Australia, which was
often seen as a barometer for the UK. Consequently, there were concerns for the
NHS as the winter season approached. In terms of statistical COVID-19 information,
reference was made to the ONS resource and the information available via that.

The Chair thanked Councillor Coupe for his attendance; Councillor Coupe left the meeting at
this point.

NOTED

DRAFT FINAL REPORT - THE ROLE OF THE VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR
(VCS) IN SUPPORTING ADULT SOCIAL CARE (WITH A FOCUS ON COVID-19 AND
RECOVERY)

The Democratic Services Officer submitted a draft final report and recommendations for the
panel’s consideration.

During discussion, a number of matters were explored, as follows:

e The use of rooms in Council buildings, VCS premises and businesses within the town.
Consideration was given to:

- The availability of rooms;

- Health and safety issues;

- The Council’'s move to Fountain Court and the size and design of that building;

- Questions as to which organisations would potentially share space; and

- The number of VCS organisations within Middlesbrough and consequential
management of expectations vs. delivery.

¢ Relationship management with the VCS. Consideration was given to:

- Aprevious Link Officer role within Culture and Communities;

- The role of Link Officer (i.e. what this involved, the level this was offered at and
how support could potentially cross directorates within the authority);

- The link to the VCS through MVDA and the relationship with them;

- The creation of wider relationships with the VCS;

- The Council’'s Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the bringing together of the
whole community;

- Arreduction in Council resources and therefore other potential ways to link in with
organisations, such as through the use of technology (e.g. links to the Council
website or a related portal);

- Pre-existing links with community organisations and how these were maintained
through first contact in Community Hubs and Libraries; how relationships could be
managed through directorates; sign posting and call handling;

- Volunteer programmes operated by MVDA, and

- Work that was currently taking place in respect of transforming local communities
and the establishment of a network to provide support (reference was made to the
work of Ageing Better Middlesbrough and the intended retention of its principles
following the programme’s conclusion).

o Establishing a link between the VCS and the Council’s Emergency Planning team to
assist with policy / practice statement development. Examples of the recent lockdown
periods, and other possible events such as a fire breaking out, were provided to
demonstrate the importance of having stringent processes in place to ensure that
support services could continue. Reference was made to potential incorporation into
existing plans and submission of these to the Emergency Planning Committee.

e Support in accessing online resources. Members discussed:

- Existing teaching programmes to assist people;

- The diminishing number of people that did not have internet access;

- The Council’s digital programme to help improve access — and a potential way of
targeting support;

Page 4



02 November 2022

- Programmes delivered by the Staying Put Agency and the challenges associated
with encouraging individuals to learn and to keep using provided equipment;

- The importance of social contact and learning from friends / local support network;

- The use of personal budgets to fund equipment and then link into social network
activity (which was very useful during the pandemic); and

- The wide variety of needs covered by the circa. 600 VCS organisations within
Middlesbrough.

e The large amount of work involved in establishing and maintaining contact directories,
which had previously been undertaken with varying degrees of success. It was felt
that, on the assumption that internet access was in place, it had never been easier to
locate and contact local resources / providers.

e Resources and funding issues, particularly in the current economic climate. It was felt
that many organisations were struggling at present and there was competition for
funding. Grant funding came with conditions but little advice around how best to
utilise the monies, and it was usually an insufficient amount. There was a view that a
mechanism was needed in order for bids to be scrutinised and conditions put in.
Relationships needed to be both collaborative and professional.

e Social media channels and how the Council could use these to support the VCS.
e Corporate volunteers. Members discussed:

- Staff training and development;

- The impact on resources and potential compounding of existing recruitment
issues;

- Reliance upon the VCS to approach the Council and offer opportunities;

- Additional costs to the authority; and

- Promotion / demonstration of the work of the Council.

¢ A Member requested that an additional note be added to the report to indicate how
vibrant and diverse the VCS in Middlesbrough was, and how it enhanced the service
provided to residents. The panel agreed that this would be added to the conclusions
section of the report.

¢ A Member made reference to the Welfare Rights service and indicated that it was the
only service in Middlesbrough that would support individuals with appeals. It was
requested that further information pertaining to this (i.e. key statistics) be sought and
added to the report. The panel agreed to this.

Following discussion, the following recommendations were agreed for inclusion in the final
report:

a) That exploratory work be undertaken to identify opportunities for more
collaborative working between the Council and the VCS, particularly in relation
to the availability of meeting space. To be undertaken by Spring/Summer 2023.

b) That the Director of Adult Social Care and Health Integration works with LMT to
explore the most effective form of relationship management between the
Council and the VCS. To be undertaken by Spring/Summer 2023.

c) That a link between the VCS and the Council’s Emergency Planning Team be
established to assist with policy/practice statement development. To be
undertaken by Spring/Summer 2023.

AGREED that, subject to the inclusion of the additional information and agreed
recommendations, the final report on ‘The Role of the Voluntary and Community Sector
(VCS) in Supporting Adult Social Care (With a Focus on COVID-19 and Recovery)’ be
approved and submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Board for consideration.

INTEGRATION OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE - VERBAL UPDATE

The Director of Adult Social Care and Health Integration advised that there had been no
substantive developments made since the last panel meeting, though reiterated to Members

Page 5



02 November 2022
that the higher level of the Integrated Care System (ICS) was now in place.

NOTED
DATE OF NEXT MEETING - 30 NOVEMBER 2022

The next meeting of the Adult Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel had been scheduled
for Wednesday, 30 November 2022 at 10.30 a.m.

Members were advised that the Independent Chair of the Teeswide Safeguarding Adults
Board (TSAB) would be in attendance to provide updates regarding the Board’s Annual
Report for 2021/22 and Strategic Plan for 2022-25.

NOTED

ANY OTHER URGENT ITEMS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, MAY BE
CONSIDERED.

Update — Charging Reforms and Fair Cost of Care

The Director of Adult Social Care and Health Integration advised that submissions on Fair
Cost of Care had been made to the Government on 14 October 2022. A response was
currently awaited.

Performance Reports

A quarterly performance report in respect of increases in demand for Adult Social Care
services would be provided to the panel from early next year. IT Services were currently
building the dashboard that would deliver the reports and it was anticipated that the system
would go live in December 2022.

NOTED

Page 6



Agenda Item 4

09@9

Teeswide Safeguarding
Adults Board

Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board
Annual Report

1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022



Introduction from Darren Best, Independent Chair

. | am pleased to present the Annual Report of the Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board
(TSAB) for 2021-22.

The format of the TSAB Annual Report has been developed over a number of years, with
clarity and accessibility in mind. There is however a legislative requirement under the Care
Act 2014, for TSAB, alongside all other Safeguarding Adults Boards across the country to
produce an Annual Report. The main purposes being to highlight the work of TSAB over the
past 12 months, what has been done to implement our strategy, to provide information
about Safeguarding Adult Reviews, (SARs) that have been undertaken and subsequently what activity
has taken place to implement their findings.

In my introduction last year, | described how the safeguarding landscape has continued to be hugely
complex and presented many new challenges, with the COVID pandemic having a significant impact. |
think it is fair to say that despite the vaccination programme and developed understanding of the virus,
this last year has been equally challenging for those involved in commissioning and providing
safeguarding services. Most importantly however it has been challenging for our communities and on that
basis the Board would wish to recognise and pay our respects to all those who have suffered, been
affected by and / or worked through the numerous challenges (including COVID) that have presented
themselves.

During 2021-22 the Board has continued to work closely with both statutory and voluntary sector partners
to gain the reassurance that safeguarding issues are addressed effectively and appropriately. Our
strategy has been developed and underpinned by the six safeguarding principles of empowerment,
prevention, protection, partnership, proportionality and accountability. The report details some of our
activities under those important headings.

As Independent Chair, it is my privilege to learn and hear about the experiences and challenges faced by
those who provide safeguarding services in Teesside, as | did last year | would like to place on record, my
admiration and thanks to every one of them.

Equally, | would like to offer a personal thanks to all members of the Board, in particular the Chairs of the
Sub-Groups and to the people who work in our Business Unit, for their continued professionalism,
commitment, hard work and support.

Contents What does the Board do?

1. Board Structure..............ccooiiiiiiiin.. 3 The Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board (TSAB) is

2.  Safeguarding Data 2021/22.................. 4 |a statutory body responsible for protecting adults’

3. Board Achievements........................... 6 fights to five independent lives, free from abuse and
neglect.

4 Priorities Across 2021/22

The Board works collaboratively with partners to set
Empowerment.................conn 7 the strategic direction for adult safeguarding in Tees
8 and seeks assurance from partners that they have

Prevention................ccooeiiiiiinnn. i i
appropriate and robust safeguarding arrangements
Proportionality............................ 9 in place.
Protection...............ooooiill 10
Partnership.............cccooiiiini . 11 Board Member Orgamsatlons

Accountability................ooovev.. 12 |6 Statutory Partners:

5.  Communication & Engagement............. 13 |+  Cleveland Police

B TIAINING. ... eeeoeeeeeee oo, 14 |+  Hartlepool Borough Council

7.  Safeguarding Adult Reviews................. 15 |*  Middlesbrough Borough Council

8.  Partner Activity..............ocoeiiiiiii, 17 |° Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council

9.  Our Priorities 2022-25..............c.......... 18 |+  Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council

10, APPENTIX....eeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeee e, 19 |+  Tees Valley Clinical Commissioning Group

For a Glossary of Terms linked to the Annual Reporlp;&g% \@it: https://www.tsab.org.uk/the-board/annual-reports/

2 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk


https://www.tsab.org.uk/the-board/annual-reports/

Board Member Organisations
21 Non-Statutory Partners:

. Beyond Housing

. Care Quality Commission

. Catalyst Stockton-on-Tees (Voluntary
Development Agency)

. Cleveland Fire Brigade

. Community Rehabilitation Company (Durham
Tees Valley) and National Probation Service
(merged together in June 2021 to form the
Probation Service)

. Department for Work and Pensions (DWP)

. Hartlepool & Stockton-on-Tees Safeguarding
Children Partnership

. Healthwatch Hartlepool

o Healthwatch South Tees

. Healthwatch Stockton-on-Tees

. HMP Holme House Prison

. Middlesbrough Voluntary Development
Agency

. North East Ambulance Service

. North Tees & Hartlepool NHS Foundation
Trust

. Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
for Cleveland

. Redcar & Cleveland Voluntary Development
Agency

. South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

. South Tees Safeguarding Children
Partnership

. Tees Esk & Wear Valleys NHS Foundation
Trust

. Teesside University

. Thirteen Housing

Board Structure

The Board has continued to engage with key
strategic partnerships across Tees including the
Local Safeguarding Children Partnerships, Health &

Sub-Groups

The Board has a number of Sub-Groups, which
lead on key pieces of work in order to achieve the
aims and objectives set out in the Board’s
Strategic Business Plan 2021/22. The purpose of
the Sub-Groups are summarised below.

Communication & Engagement (CE)

Leads the development, implementation and
evaluation of a multi-agency strategy aimed at
increasing awareness of safeguarding adults and
promoting the involvement of adults at risk, carers
and advocates in the Teeswide safeguarding
adults processes.

Learning Training & Development (LTD)

Leads the development, implementation and
evaluation of a multi-agency learning, training and
development strategy.

Operational Leads (OL)

Provides a forum to enable safeguarding adults
operational leads from TSAB partner agencies to
share good practice, problem-solve and access
peer support. The Sub-Group also provides
qualitative data to inform the development of
person-centred policies, procedures and
strategies.

Performance, Audit & Quality (PAQ)

Leads the development and implementation of a
performance framework and provides an audit and
quality assurance function on behalf of the TSAB.

Safeguarding Adult Review (SAR)

Leads on the development and implementation of
the Teeswide SAR Policy and Procedures to
ensure that learning from any reviews undertaken
locally and nationally is disseminated
appropriately. The Sub-Group also considers
notifications for SARs and makes
recommendations to the Independent Chair.

Task & Finish Groups

During 2021/22 there were a number of Task & Finish
Groups to look at specific work streams:

Wellbeing Boards, Community Safety Partnerships,  ® Learning from Reviews
Strategic Vulnerable Exploited Missing and . Housing/Homelessness
Trafficked, Serious and Organised Crime Group and Multi-Disciplinary Team Guidance
the Cleveland Anti-Slavery Network as well as . Streamlining Data Options (commenced March
regional and national Safeguarding Adults Boards. 2022)
Pageog Safeguarding and Falls (commenced March 2022)

3 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk



Safeguarding Data 2021-22

Concerns and Section 42 Enquiries*

* Data on this page relates to Section 42 Enquiries commenced

Safeguarding Concern - areport made  S42 Enquiries - The Care Act 2014 (Section 42) requires that

to the lead agency for the safeguarding each Local Authority must make enquiries, or cause others to do so,
process to raise concerns of adult abuse/ if it believes an adult is experiencing, or is at risk of, abuse and/or
neglect. neglect.
Concerns Section 42 Enquiries
2021/22 3,041 |
| 48% Conversion Increase in
Safeguarding Concerns
2020/21 5,694 2,783 received

9% Increase in

2019/20 5,023 2,815 Section 42 Enquiries

carried out

2018/19 2,058

Location of Abuse: Section 42 Enquiries

B as

\

Own Home 48% Care Home 32% Hospital 8% Community 6% Other 6%

4

A person's Own Home remains the most common location of risk in Tees, which reflects the data trends
reported Nationally. The number of Section 42 Enquiries undertaken in relation to Care Homes recorded a
slight decrease when compared to the previous year.

Types of Adult Abuse: Section 42 Enquiries

862! Neglect & Acts of Omission

506 | Physical

378 | Financial & Material

371 | Domestic - - -
\ In line with National trends the number of Concerns recorded

343 | Self-Neglect across Tees has continued to increase again during this reporting

N 275 Psychological year. Although Concerns continue to increase year on year, the
y 9 conversion rate to a Section 42 Enquiry remains consistent with

I 108 | Organisational previous year's data.

I 116 | Sexual The top 4 areas of abuse for Section 42 Enquiries in Tees
B 40 | Sexual Exploitation cgntinu_e to be Ne_glect & Acts of Omission (28%), Physical (17%),
Financial & Material Abuse (12%) and Domestic Abuse (12%).
B 27 | Modern Slavery
e This reporting year has also seen a recorded increase across the
W15 | Discriminatory following areas of abuse: Neglect & Acts of Omission,
m2021/22 202021P a@@hg_@;ical, Self-Neglect and Sexual Abuse.

4 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk



Performance Indicators #)

Criteria to
achieve

Percentage of Section 42 Enquiries that
involved an Adult with a previous enquiry in a
rolling 12-month period

Percentage of Concerns leading to
Section 42 Enquiry in 2021/22

Percentage of those who were asked
their desired outcome in 2021/22

Percentage of those who were satisfied
with their outcome in 2021/22

Percentage of those where risk has been
reduced or removed
Safeguarding Concerns Received Section 42 Enquiries Commenced

Care Homes 24% . . .

Concerns o Section 42 Enqulrles were carried out,

were recieved, on NHS Secondary Care ~ 13% on average, per week across Tees
average per week Social Care 9%

across Tees 15% increase in own Home category

Police 8%

* % of C¢ ived from

4% decrease in Care Home category

28% decrease in Concers received from Care Homes 52% of ALL Section 42 Enquil"ies relate to

an adult aged under 65

17% increase in Concerns received from Family/Friends -
y 24% increase in the number of Section 42 Enquiries

o7 & relating to people aged under 50
12% increase in Concerns received from both Care at

Home & Social Care staff @ 58% of ALL Section 42 Enquiries

o E relate to females
40% increase in Concerns received about Psychological

Abuse 79% of Domestic Abuse cases

involved a female victim, with the majority of cases
occurring in their own home

37% increase in Concerns relating to Self-Neglect

Outcomes of Concluded Section 42 Enquiries

Source of Risk to the Adult Safeguarding Action
Service ‘
Known to Pr;;f;er
Individual ° 929% of Concluded Section
59% Unknown to 42 Enquiries, action
Individual
16% was taken
Safeguarding Outcome Adults Voice 959, | of people's
outcomes were fully
70% 93% of people or partly met

22%
Risk
Removed

Risk
Reduced

were asked what .

8% Risk Remained outcome they want @ .‘l @

Page 11 "

5 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk




Some of our achievements
over the past year...

July—September 2021

. A quick and easy Mental Capacity Act
guide was published for practitioners.

. Spotlight on...Support Services Campaign.

. Making Every Contact Count training
offered to Safeguarding Champions
(delivered by local Public Health services).

. Multi-Disciplinary Team Guidance
published.

April—June 2021

First Joint Learning from Reviews meeting
held with Community Safety Partnerships
and later with Safeguarding Children
Partnerships to discuss how to formally
share learning from reviews across the
partnerships.

A Communication and Engagement Plan
2021/22 was co-produced with the
Safeguarding Children Partnerships.

Annual Communication & Engagement (CE)
Report 2020/21 published.

Rapid (Learning) Review process trialled
and later recruited a pool of volunteers to
chair this type of review.

Worked collaboratively with North East SAR
Champions network to set up the regional
Safeguarding Adult Review Library.

The Board delivered its first Modern Slavery
training session.

January—March 2022

. Two key campaigns took place:
=  Spotlight on...Self-Neglect

=  Look Closer (joint exploitation
awareness campaign with
Safeguarding Children
Partnerships)

. In response to Alcohol Change’s National
Report, the Board delivered its first
Safeguarding Vulnerable Dependent
Drinkers training.

. Two Task & Finish Groups commenced:

=  to develop systems and processes
for data collection/reports

=  to develop a Safeguarding & Falls
Protocol

. Stephen Learning Lessons Review

Report published.
Pa

October—December 2021

12

6 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk

Easy read safeguarding guide developed in
consultation with Independent Voices
service user group.

Teeswide Team Around the Individual
referral form for high risk/complex cases
developed and published.

North East SAR Champions presented to
the National Care & Health Improvement
Programme and Local Government
Association (LGA) showcasing regional
good practice and received excellent
feedback.

Two important campaigns took place:
=  Back to Basics
=  National Safeguarding Adults Week

Trauma Informed Practice event held for
professionals.

Housing and Homelessness Task & Finish
Group convened.




Empowerment

Me said we would do: \

1. Establish mechanisms that allow service users and carers to better inform the future
direction and priorities of the Board.

2.  Ensure individuals requiring safeguarding services are asked what they want as outcomes
from the safeguarding process and that their views inform what happens.

3.  Strengthen professionals’ understanding of the legislative framework and trauma informed

>practioe to ensure the best outcomes for adults at risk. /

What we did:

1. The Board carried out its Annual Consultation Survey 2021/22, the results were used to inform the
future priorities for the Board. There was a 184% increase in responses from the general public
compared to the previous year. The survey results included feedback from service users and carers.

In 2020/21 the Board, together with the Safeguarding Children Partnerships and Office of Police and
Crime Commissioner for Cleveland, commissioned SafeLives to undertake a full systems review of
Domestic Abuse across Tees. In June 2021, Domestic Abuse survivors and perpetrators were
encouraged to complete a consultation survey, which will feed into the outcomes of this project due to
complete during 2022/23.

People First (Advocacy) attended the Board’s Development Session in February 2022 and shared real
case examples of people they support who use safeguarding services. This provided an additional
opportunity to ensure that service users were at the forefront, when Board members were discussing
ideas for future priorities and the strategic business plan for 2022/23. Work continues with People First
into 2022/23 to discuss how adults’ perspectives and experiences can help to inform the Board’s work.

2. The Multi-Agency audit programme continued on a virtual basis. The involvement of the adult and their
views, wishes and desired outcomes were considered as part of the audit process. The audit reports
were presented at Board meetings and highlighted good practice, areas for improvement with actions for
agencies to reflect and act upon to continually drive service improvement.

The Board has five Performance Indicators (Pl), one of which includes; percentage of those who were
satisfied with their outcome. For 2021/22 this Pl was achieved at 95%

The Board continued to deliver Making Safeguarding Personal training, to empower professionals to feel
confident in seeking adults’ views and working with adults to achieve the best outcome for them.

3. A Trauma Informed Practice event was held in November 2021. Legal Literacy training sessions
continued throughout 2021/22 including a Legal Literacy update for Board Members in March 2022. A
new e-learning course on the Human Rights Act was launched in November 2021.

The Tees and Regional Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) Group continued to meet to prepare for
implementation of the Mental Capacity Act Amendment Bill anticipated in 2022/23.

In June 2021, Board members received an update from Cleveland Police in respect of the Domestic
Abuse Bill, and what changes this would bring from a policing perspective in terms of supporting and
protecting victims of domestic abuse.

One service user’s account, when interviewed for Self-Neglect article:

“The ongoing support and help from the agency has really kept me going...One of the reasons that | think

I got myself into this situation was that | was embarrassed and ashamed at how my life had turned out, but

| can speak with the staff and they want to help me and don’t judge me...the support | have had has made
h diff t ”,

a huge difference to me Page 13

7 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk



Prevention
m we said we would do: N

1.  Provide accessible, clear and simple information, advice and support that helps people to
understand what abuse is, how to recognise the signs and how help can be sought.

Improve engagement with local communities.

3. Help efforts to reduce social isolation and loneliness. -

What we did:

1. During November 2021, the Board delivered a comprehensive communication and engagement plan
where multi-agency activity took place for National Safeguarding Adults Week, with a particular focus on
engaging with harder to reach, marginalised groups and those who may be digitally excluded. An easy
read safeguarding guide was developed with Independent Voices advocacy group and a safeguarding
awareness radio advert was produced in English and Urdu with Community Voices FM. The Board
worked with Healthwatch South Tees who asked people ‘what does safeguarding mean to you?’ to help
benchmark public understanding. Their quotes were shared on social media to help raise public
awareness of safeguarding.

In June 2021, the Home Office’s British Sign Language awareness video on Domestic Abuse was added
to the TSAB website and promoted on social media. Work continues into 2022/23 to raise awareness of
safeguarding with people who have sensory loss/impairments.

Work continued on the Board’s website to meet Web Content Accessibility Guidelines and any new or
reviewed documents were made accessible before being added to the TSAB website.

The Board coordinated a Spotlight On...Back to Basics campaign which promoted ‘safeguarding is
everyone’s business’ and shared key, simple messages on what abuse is, how to spot the signs and how
to seek help. The Board’s leaflets, which are translated into commonly spoken non-English languages
were also shared.

In July 2021 the Board’s Find Support in Your Area webpage was fully reviewed and updated to ensure
people using the site were being signposted to the correct and current support available.

From September 2021 the Board launched a number of simple ‘Safeguarding Explainer’ animations
which covered key topics linked to safeguarding.

In September 2021 all of the Board’s leaflets were reviewed, re-designed and formatted so that they
could easily be accessed, downloaded and printed directly from the website.

2. The Board supported various national campaigns during 2021/22 and coordinated a ‘Spotlight
On...Support Services’ campaign, which highlighted local support available to victims of abuse and/or
neglect.

The Board continued to engage with its 122 Safeguarding Champions via quarterly Keeping in Touch
Bulletins. The Champions helped to share key messages within their networks and with the service users
and carers they support.

3. Safeguarding articles were included in the autumn and winter editions of local resident magazines,
which were delivered to every household across Tees.

In June 2021, the Board commissioned three new e-learning courses; substance misuse, dementia
awareness and loneliness and isolation.

The Board commissioned a Safeguarding Explainer animation on Social Isolation and Loneliness
(launched in 2022/23).

In February 2022, the North East SAR Champions secured funding from ADASS to develop an animation

on Self-Neglect. Work continues into 2022/23 e 1/

8 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk



Proportionality

me said we would do: \

1.  Provide effective, consistent, timely and proportionate responses to reported abuse.

2. Continue to adopt a proportionate and pragmatic approach to safeguarding adults work
during and following the Covid-19 pandemic.

3. Communicate with and seek feedback from service users and carers to ensure
safeguarding responses are the least intrusive possible and appropriate to the risk(s)

What we did:

1. The effectiveness and application of the TSAB inter-agency safeguarding adults procedures, making
safeguarding personal approach and proportionality were monitored as part of the annual Multi-Agency
Audit programme.

In June 2021, the TSAB procedures were amended in line with national recommendations from Social
Care Institute for Excellence (SCIE) and Care and Health Improvement Programme (CHIP) of ‘what is a
safeguarding concern?’ to ensure consistency on a national basis.

The Board continued to deliver Care Act Section 42 (S42) Enquiry training (Level 1 and Level 2) which
promotes use of TSAB’s Inter-Agency Policy & Procedures, Decision Support Guidance and Causing
S42 Enquiries Guidance, all of which emphasise appropriate timescales, proportionality and aid
consistency.

The Safeguarding Adults Review Sub-Group continued to consider proportionality to maximise learning.
A ‘Rapid Review’ methodology was trialled in May 2021, which reduced the resource implications for
staff, whilst ensuring meaningful learning was shared and distributed quickly. The process was deemed
successful and will be used for future cases where appropriate.

In response to a SAR Notification which did not meet the criteria for a SAR, it was identified that there
was still valuable learning in relation to the links between falls and Safeguarding Concerns; a Task &
Finish Group was set up to develop a Safeguarding and Falls Protocol (published in 2022/23).

2. Despite ongoing uncertainties linked to the pandemic, the Board continued to engage with service
users, carers and harder to reach groups using a variety of communication methods. The Board’s
Training Plan continued to be delivered online as well as the Quality Assurance/Self-Audit process.
Safeguarding Adult Review work, including learning review processes also continued virtually.

Multi-Disciplinary Team Guidance was published in September 2021, which highlights the pros and cons
of virtual or face to face meetings and suggests that these are considered when setting up meetings. The
Board continues to work flexibly, using the most appropriate forums for meetings, training and learning
reviews.

3. The Board’s annual survey 2021/22 received 53 responses from carers, compared to 10 responses
the previous year. The Board also supported National Carers Week in June 2021.

In June 2021 it was agreed for feedback to be sought from practitioners involved in Learning Reviews to
provide assurance that learning has been embedded into practice.

“I have subsequently used the process of professional challenge successfully which has enabled me and
the team to understand why decisions have been reached and this has been empowering for both staff
understanding of the risk assessments and safety netting in place and for patients to live as they choose”.

- Practitioner involved in the Adult D Learning Lessons Review
Page 15

9 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk



Protection

m said we would do: \

1.  Encourage a frauma-informed, strengths based and person-centred approach to all
safeguarding work.

Use the concept of contextual safeguarding* to protect adults at risk.

Learn from the findings of local, regional and national Safeguarding Adult Reviews and
Learning Lessons Reviews, and applicable Domestic Homicide Reviews and Safeguarding
Children Practice Reviews.

*to understand and respond to people’s experience of abuse and exploitation from perpetrators outside of they

What we did:

1. As part of the Adult F Learning Lessons (Rapid) Review a Learning Briefing was published and
shared widely, which included themes around the impact of trauma and professional curiosity to
understand the best way to engage with someone who may be affected by trauma and encouraging
flexible engagement opportunities. The Adult F Learning Briefing was also introduced as a case study in
Legal Literacy and Self-Neglect training courses.

A Trauma Informed Practice event was held in November 2021, which included an expert by experience
speaker and a presentation on vicarious trauma. Recorded videos were made available on the TSAB
website. Key messages were also shared via social media to raise public awareness of the impact of
trauma.

In January 2022, the Operational Leads Sub-Group reviewed TSAB’s Making Safeguarding Personal
Guidance.

2. The Board held its first Modern Slavery training session in June 2021 and Criminal Exploitation and
County Lines e-learning courses were commissioned in December 2021.

The Molly Safeguarding Adult Review was agreed in August 2021; learning and reflection workshops
with practitioners took place in December 2021. Some key early learning from the review linked to Adult
Sexual Exploitation, trauma and the effective management of perpetrators. Actions to address the
recommendations from this SAR will continue into 2022/23.

3. The Board continued to share regional and national learning from SARs at SAR Sub-Group meetings
to consider and act upon the learning from a Tees perspective—these reports are published on the
TSAB website. It was suggested following some high profile national cases, to run a Creating Safer
Cultures Awareness campaign in 2022/23.

During 2021/22, the Safeguarding Adult Review (SAR) Sub-Group considered a number of new SAR
notifications. 3 cases were published and 4 cases were completed during the reporting year. Open
action plans continued to be monitored and implemented.

In December 2021, a Joint Review Protocol was agreed with the Safeguarding Children Partnerships
and Community Safety Partnerships, to develop a more coordinated approach and improve lines of
communication between partnerships with regards to learning reviews.

Comments and Feedback from Trauma Informed Event

“Genuinely one of the best “You are an inspiration and “Thar.1k you, very thought
presentations | have witnessed in 20 thank you for sharing your proyoklng. It reaII.y made me
years of working in the trauma field, story with us. Very valuable th'n_k at?out the impact (of

remarkable and brilliant” points to be learnt’ vicarious trauma) on
colleagues”

e Page 16 T

10 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk



Partnership

m said we would do: \

1.  Ensure Board partners work together in an effective manner to protect adults from abuse
and neglect.

2. Collaborate with the Local Safeguarding Children Partnerships, Community Safety
Partnerships and Strategic Vulnerable Exploited Missing Trafficked to deliver joint priorities
and objectives.

3.  Work with partners and partnerships to support the development of a ‘Missing Adults’
protocol and to further develop ‘Transitions’ work.

4. Seek assurance from partners that the NICE guidelines for Safeguarding Adults in Care
Homes are met when commissioning and supporting services.

What we did:

1. Themed discussions took place at Operational Leads (OL) Sub-Group meetings on complex
safeguarding topics and sharing best practice; Homelessness, Adult Sexual Exploitation, Domestic
Abuse and Alcohol, Financial Abuse/Scams, Discrimination/Hate Crime and Quality of Concerns.

The themed discussion regarding Homelessness prompted further work by a Task & Finish Group to
consider an effective approach to support homeless people to access health and support services. This
work concluded in March 2022, and each Local Authority area has taken forward their own action plan.

The Team Around the Individual (TATI) approach continued to be embedded into practice and provided a
means of escalation, to collectively manage high risk and complex cases. The multi-agency audits of the
TATI process have highlighted good practice and areas for improvement. A TATI referral form was
developed to compliment the Teeswide TATI Guidance, to improve consistency across Local Authority
areas.

2. The Strategic Vulnerable Exploited Missing and Trafficked (VEMT) Transition Principles were
approved by the Board in September 2021. During 2021/22 the process for Adult representatives
attending the VEMT Practitioners Group became much more established, to ensure a smooth transition
of support from children safeguarding into adult safeguarding.

In November 2021 planning commenced to deliver a Joint Learning from Reviews event (in May 2022)
with support from the Safeguarding Children Partnerships and Community Safety Partnerships.

In March 2022, TSAB joined the Call for Action on Adult Sexual Exploitation (ASE) Group, chaired by
Cleveland Police, to understand the prevalence of ASE in Tees. Work continues into 2022/23.

3. In January 2022, the OL Sub-Group discussed welfare visits for vulnerable people at risk of suicide.
Work continues in 2022/23.

A Safeguarding Explainer video on suicide prevention was launched in September 2021.

Cleveland Police introduced a Missing From Home (MFH) Co-ordination Team who were embedded into
their Safeguarding Department and have established close working relationships with partners. They
continue to use intelligence and trend analysis to identify repeat persons and locations and adopt a
problem-solving approach. A new MFH Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) was launched and
provides key advice to officers to ensure the effective management of missing person investigations.

4. In April 2021, the Board considered the National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) Guid-
ance for Safequarding Adults in Care Homes. Members were asked to provide an assurance statement
to ensure the recommendations had been considered and implemented where appropriate.

The TSAB’s Training Plan, training competencies and Quality Assurance Framework (QAF) / Self-Audit
Tool were also reviewed in line with the NICE Guingl

11 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk


https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng189/resources/safeguarding-adults-in-care-homes-pdf-66142030079941
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng189/resources/safeguarding-adults-in-care-homes-pdf-66142030079941

Accountability
m we said we would do: N

1.  Gain assurance from partners about the effective delivery of their services.
2. Deliver and achieve the Board’s performance benchmarks.
3.

Promote the Teeswide adult safeguarding competencies as a framework for the delivery of
safeguarding adults training. /

What we did:

1. The Board continued to receive assurance on organisations’ safeguarding arrangements from non-
statutory partners as part of the Quality Assurance Framework (QAF) / Self-Audit process. Beyond
Housing became a new Board partner in July 2021 and completed the QAF Self-Audit Process providing
assurance to the October Board.

The Board’s Multi-Agency Audit Programme continued and considered cases of: Homelessness, Adult
Sexual Exploitation, Team Around the Individual (TATI) Self-Neglect cases (x4), TATI Domestic Abuse
and Alcohol cases (x4), Financial/Scams, Discriminatory/Hate Crime, Quality of Concerns. 4 audit reports
were presented to the Board during 2021/22 and the TATI audits were logged as evidence against
relevant Safeguarding Adult Review and Learning Lesson Review action plans.

During 2021/22 the Board were notified of 11 care providers who were subject to the Responding to and
Addressing Serious Concerns (RASC) Policy and Procedure. The Lessons Learned Reports from 10
care providers were discussed at the SAR Sub-Group, where the learning was considered and shared
via appropriate networks. In September 2021, the RASC Learning Lessons Reports (over a two-year
period) were analysed, for the SAR Sub-Group to reflect on the main issues/themes affecting care
providers. Members provided assurance that there are mechanisms in place to address concerns.

The Board received a number of presentations during 2021/22; Home Office (Agency Workers in Care
Settings), Cleveland Police (Domestic Abuse Bill changes) SafeLives (Domestic Abuse Project), Public
Health (Drug Related Death Reviews), Tees Valley CCG (LEDER Annual Report and Private Mental
Health Hospitals), Middlesbrough Borough Council (Domestic Homicide Review 4), and Voluntary Sector
(overview). Partners also continued to be invited to present the results of any inspection reports. The OL
Sub-Group also received presentations from; DWP, Cleveland Police (Organised Crime), Coroner’s
Office and A Way Out charity.

2. 5 out of 5 Key Performance Indicators were achieved in 2021/22.

From April 2021, quarterly performance reports, which included multi-agency data were streamlined and
routinely presented at TSAB meetings. Work is continuing to explore streamlined approaches for data
collection and reporting into 2022/23.

3. All training courses commissioned by TSAB were continually reviewed to evaluate quality and
effectiveness through the use of initial evaluations and impact assessments. Changes were made, where
appropriate, to keep the content relevant.

“As a provider it is vital that when our services do not meet the required standard we respond in a
transparent and constructive manner to ensure that we not only meet the needs of our contractual
obligations, but we also and most importantly ensure that the residents we work for, get the service they
deserve. It was clear that our home fell short of this baseline of quality... | wanted to place on record how
inclusive and driven from a partnership perspective, the whole [RASC] process was. It was refreshing as
a provider to see the Local Authority not only understanding the difficult circumstances, we found
ourselves in as a provider, but also acted as a critical friend and supported us, through extensive
knowledge of the sector. This sharing of best practice had an immediate impact on service quality
outcomes and safety”.

Feedback from a Care Provider subject to R% e 18

12 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk



Communication and Engagement

178,183 website views* 3 radio interviews

*highest yearly views to date 1 radio advert

- (108% increase on previous year)

414,216 digital advertising
( h 49,625 reached impressions

783 followers*

*33% increase on previous year [N

416,500 local magazines

67,100 impressions 5,702 newsletter reads

796 followers* 704 safeguarding
*8% increase on previous year Champions Bulletin reads

62 YouTube subscribers m 961,000 impacts
o ()

bus stop advert

Read more detail in the Board’s Annual Communication and Engagement Report 2021/22

Awareness Campaigns D ¢
The Board coordinated 3 focused ‘Spotlight On’ campaigns: Support « "".‘
Services, Back to Basics and Self-Neglect. In addition, the Board took 'nk.-.- r\?-*
part in National Safeguarding Adults Week 2021, collaborating with II( “

partners to develop a joint communication and engagement plan. Key
activity included: radio interviews, a Trauma Informed Practice event,
resident magazines, digital advertising, bus stop campaign, displays in
shopping centres/other key venues, launch of the ‘Tricky Friends’ video
and easy read safeguarding guide. There was also a focused campaign
with Community Voices FM radio and the BME Network.

| Safeguarding is everyone's business.
| Safeguarding Adults Week
15-21 November 2021

Self-Neglect... The Self-Neglect campaign included

you don't have to face it

youd 3 articles in local resident magazines that
' ‘P were based on real case studies and
‘ é" interviews with service users. The TSAB
\ newsletter included a service user’s
story, told in their own words of their experience and how they were
supported in relation to their self-neglect.

Safe Place Scheme

The Safe Place Scheme steering group met twice during 2021/22. The group focused on
maintaining and auditing current venues to establish those which had closed due to the
= pandemic. In October 2021, discussions began on how to link with other similar safe

place initiatives in Tees (e.g. Ask ANI Domestic Abuse codeword scheme), work is
- ongoing into 2022/23.
Safeguarding Explainer Videos Teetide Setemacts Sl R TR

Hi!
Let's look at:

From September 2021 the Board launched a number of Safequarding
Explainer animations, covering key topics on; what is safeguarding? :
organisational abuse, PREVENT, modern slavery/human trafficking g"h? e ding?
and suicide prevention. areguarding:
P Page 19 & g

13 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk


https://www.tsab.org.uk/the-board/annual-reports/
https://www.tsab.org.uk/campaigns-and-initiatives/find-support-in-your-area/safe-place-scheme/
https://www.tsab.org.uk/key-information/safeguarding-explained-videos/
https://www.tsab.org.uk/key-information/safeguarding-explained-videos/

Training
The Board provides free multi-agency training, designed to supplement single agency training provision.
The Board continued to deliver its existing training programme as well as commissioning additional

courses. Based on feedback, the Section 42 Enquiry training was split

into foundation and advanced level and the Safeguarding
Adults Training for Managers of Services included an
additional refresher course.

Safequarding Adults Training for Managers of Services
(Refresher) - Learner Feedback

“This will greatly benefit our service users in future in
allowing staff the foresight in perhaps reducing the incidents
if we can spot triggers sooner”

New TSAB courses introduced
in 2021/22:

Modern Slavery

Safeguarding Vulnerable
Dependent Drinkers

Section 42 (Foundation) - Learner Feedback

Legal Literacy: ‘Aftercare

Under Section 117 Mental
Health Act’.

“l now have a much better understanding of how enquiries
should be undertaken, who can be responsible for this, and
the significance of the safeguarding triage system”

Me-Learning

The Board commissions the e-Learning platform (Me-Learning) with the local Safeguarding Children
Partnerships. There are often crossovers between children and adult safeguarding work and therefore it
is recognised that people who work with children and/or adults greatly benefit from having access to a
wide range of safeguarding courses available in one place. The figures below are based on all learners

across children and adults. .
During 2021/22 there were:

11,007 | istered
]‘I 1 earners fegistere 19,780 course registrations

on the Me-Learning system*
18,368 e-learning courses

..o From 2,577 different completed*

. . .
N, organisations *93% completion rate
s9ss0ss 9157 were newlearners who joined 1,145 completed Safeguarding Adults
during 2021/22 Level 1 courses during 2021/22

444 gelegates attended virtual training webinars: 187 workbooks
o ' all face to face training was suspended across the || completed

year due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Modern Slavery—Learner Feedback

Safequarding Vulnerable Dependent

“Increased awareness of modern day slavery and the Drinkers—Learner Feedback

forms that this can take. Also not to accept things on

'face value' and use professional curiosity to drill down [§ ~12ken forward knowledge of working at

service user’'s pace and not always starting
with support to reduce drinking and look at
other concerns or issues that can be
addressed”

and gain more useful information”

14 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk



Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARS)

A SAR is undertaken when agencies who worked with an adult who has been subject to abuse or
neglect, come together to find out if they could have done things differently and prevented serious harm
or death from happening. A SAR does not blame an individual or organisation for their actions, its
purpose is to learn from what happened and to see what can be changed so that harm is less likely to
happen in the same way to other people in the future.

The Care Act 2014 says that Safeguarding Adult Boards must arrange a SAR when an adult dies or is
seriously harmed as a result of suspected or known abuse or neglect and there is reasonable cause for
concern about how, or if partners worked together to safeguard the adult.

Cases published during 2021/22 can be viewed here:

https://www.tsab.org.uk/professionals/safequarding-adult-review-sar-reports/

Adult F Adult H Stephen

Learning Briefing Learning Briefing Learning Lessons Review

SAR Sub-Group Activity

The role of the Sub-Group is to consider new SAR notifications, oversee any ongoing SARs or other
reviews, ensure any learning from reviews (locally, regionally or nationally) is considered by TSAB
partners and taken forward in their own organisations, and to oversee the implementation of action plans
arising from review activity across Tees. The SAR Sub-Group met 10 times in 2021-22, including 3 SAR
Notification meetings which were held to ensure notifications were considered in a timely way.
Membership of the Sub-Group comprises of senior managers from our key partner organisations.

7 SAR Notifications considered in 2021/22 (compared to 4 in 2020/21 and 8 in 2019/20)
Of th 7 :
ese fcases 4 national SARs considered by the Sub-
1 case met the Care Act 2014 criteria for a SAR (the Group.

outcome will be reported in 2022/23) 8 open cases being monitored.

2 cases were progressed as single agency reviews (a 4 action Plans completed in the period.
learning briefing was published in relation to one of

these reviews). The Adult F Learning Briefing was published
following a Rapid Review which started in
1 case did not meet the Care Act 2014 criteria for a 2020/21 and concluded in 2021/22.

SAR, however, it was agreed that there would be
relevant learning from undertaking a Learning Lessons ~ The Stephen Lessons Learned Report and
Review: this was undertaken using Rapid Review Learning Briefing were published.
methodology by an internal reviewer who was
independent of the case.

BRIEFING Stephen

Background

Stephen was a 56 year old man with learning disabilities who had cancer. He was a tenant in shared
supported living accommodation and received additional support for community activities. Stephen
was a fun and very sociable man who loved buses and trains and liked to be out and about. He loved
jigsaws and comedy programmes on TV and liked to make jokes.

LEARN]NG| Learaing Lessons Review @\
1 case was taken forward as a Domestic Homicide
Review (DHR).

2 i f ion fi e S el 1 EoE- 100 March 2230 Seabhvan omiractod Coud- 19, el raceied 10

cases were deemed o require o further action from e e e B e o

a reVieW perspective’ however a |earning briefing Was ﬁr?:;‘a‘st\esé?é]:?“al:‘;%Tﬁ%‘éer?\t:‘g::e but gradually deteriorated and was readmitted to hospital in April 2020

produced from one of these cases which had also been Theme 1: Theme 2: Shielding people with health
. y s . Working with Stephen’s Family Emtle

subject to a Coroner’s inquest to ensure learning S S Mo cold have been don to antiipatsthat

g r Stephen should have been shielded due to the risk of
1 Stephen’s family was not developed by all 5410 i
releva nt to th e Case Was Sh a red Wlth pa rtn e rS . partners and this impacted on trust, information tCivld‘WB |nfect.c:: atnd e c'are .Zh?md hav:::een
ag e sharing and on how well Stephen’s needs were u?,‘::mnozgs:;z mﬁoag\;emme" (GLE IEBEIUIBLED
met

15 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk


https://www.tsab.org.uk/professionals/safeguarding-adult-review-sar-reports/

SAR Sub-Group Achievements

M Completed a multi-agency review for Adult F using Rapid Review methodology for the first time.
This approach provided a proportionate and timely review of practice and included engagement with
practitioners in the review, the report was approved at the September Board meeting and a Learning
Briefing was developed and published.

M Following on from the Rapid Review for Adult F, further work was undertaken to provide training and
coaching opportunities for senior managers from our partner organisations to build internal capacity for
independent reviewers.

M Joint protocol developed and agreed with the Safeguarding Children Partnerships and Community
Safety Partnerships with the aim of developing a more coordinated approach, to improve lines of
communication between partnerships throughout the review process and to ensure learning from all types
of reviews are shared across partnerships.

M Introduced a process to go back to practitioners who have been involved in a review to seek their
reflections on how practice has changed and whether learning has been truly embedded in practice.

M Planning commenced for a joint learning event with the Safeguarding Children Partnerships and
Community Safety Partnerships across Tees looking at similar themes within reviews and sharing the
learning across all service areas.

North East SAR Champions

M Developed a regional SAR repository to build a comprehensive library that is reflective of the work
that has been undertaken across the region. This has been set up via Microsoft Teams; it lists and hosts
local and national SARs, discretionary reviews, 7 minute briefings and other useful resources to inform
and share learning across the region. This work has been showcased nationally.

M The group also carried out some work in relation to the SAR Quality Markers, and developed a
regional quality markers checklist in order to simplify the language and ensure the checklist is succinct
and accessible, this work is ongoing.

A message from Jill Harrison, Director of Adult & Community Based Services for Hartlepool
Borough Council and Chair of the SAR Sub-Group.

“As well as managing the SAR process and promoting the sharing of learning across agencies, the SAR
Sub-Group also reviews SARs undertaken elsewhere in the country, ensuring that relevant learning
informs policies, procedures and practice within Tees. When themes are identified within reviews,
briefings and case studies are used to inform training and development opportunities and to raise
awareness of adult safeguarding more widely. The SAR Sub-Group also works closely with those leading
on other forms of review, such as Domestic Homicide Reviews and Learning Disability Mortality Reviews
when appropriate to maximise opportunities for learning that informs service improvements and ultimately
leads to better outcomes for local people. The group has also been proactive over the past year in
considering different approaches to reviews that are timely and proportionate, taking into account how
reviews are undertaken in other areas and examples of good practice.

The SAR Sub-Group undertakes a statutory function on behalf of the TSAB and its members take on a
significant responsibility and time commitment in order to manage the work of the group

effectively. Meetings are well established and well attended and, as Chair of the SAR Sub-Group, | would
like to formally record my thanks to all members of the group for their input and particularly the TSAB
Business Unit for the outstanding support that is provided”.

Partner Contribution from North Tees & Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust:

“The learning from local and national Safeguarding Adults Reviews has enabled the Trust to reflect upon
current practice and identify areas for improvement in order to safeguard vulnerable adults. The new
approach to carrying out (rapid) reviews has ensured that lessons can be identified early’.

Page 22

16 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk




Partner Activity 2021/22

Each year, Board partners reflect on their organisations’ involvement, contribution and support in helping
to achieve the Board'’s strategic aims and objectives. Their summaries are included below:

Hartlepool Borough Council remains fully committed to the strategic aims and work of TSAB,
recognising the value of a co-ordinated approach across Tees and the benefits this has for local
people. Over the past year we have continued to develop the Integrated Community Safety Team
(comprising of community safety staff, Cleveland Police, Cleveland Fire Brigade and Cleveland Victim
Care and Advice Service) and have undertaken a review of the Team Around the Individual (TATI)
process that was originally developed in Hartlepool before being adopted across Tees. The integrated
approach that is now embedded, alongside a revised TATI model, has further improved communication
and collaboration between partners and professionals, supporting our shared aim of improving and
better coordinating services to support people across Hartlepool who are living with multiple and
complex needs. We have used learning from reviews to inform the development of practice and used
the audit process to provide assurance that practice improvements are delivered. We have also
delivered local awareness raising campaigns that make use of existing links with providers and
community groups to ensure that messages are widely promoted. We were also able to use the
expertise of an Assistant Director within the Council to support TSAB in developing a Rapid Review
model and to provide training to TSAB partners, which has enabled the approach to be adopted and
utilised alongside other methodologies.

Middlesbrough Borough Council (MBC) has worked with Cleveland Police Licensing Team, Health
Agencies, A Way Out and our Neighbourhood Safety Team, Guiding Light Project (Making Every Adult
Matter), Housing Solutions Team and Recovery Solutions Team to provide a bi-monthly drop in service
at Newport Hub. The aim is to support prevention by engaging vulnerable men and women from across
Middlesbrough who may be at risk of sexual exploitation or sex working. We want to be able to
increase confidence and trust in engaging with voluntary and statutory services and to empower
individuals to make positive life choices. This involves providing harm reduction services, safety advice,
emotional support, practical help and one to one casework to meet individual needs. Working along-
side partners, the Safeguarding Team aims to ensure a range of support is offered and can be
accessed easily including drug and alcohol support, legal advice, benefits advice, housing support and
advice and health clinics. MBC has worked to embed trauma informed practice further over 2021/22.
We have done so through involvement in the TSAB Trauma Informed Practice Learning Event, high-
lighting the importance of trauma informed practice in the quarterly Modern Slavery, Exploitation and
Human Trafficking Peer Support Meetings and by commissioning Time to Reflect — Vicarious Trauma
training for our front line staff and managers. Involvement in the TSAB audit process for 2021/22 has
provided assurance that our Safeguarding and Team Around the Individual Panel practice is effective.
We have demonstrated our ability to adhere to the TSAB policies and procedures, involve service
users and carers and manage risk through working effectively with partner agencies.

Redcar and Cleveland Borough Council (RCBC) has continued to support the aims and objectives
of the strategic plan during 2021/22. We have played an active part on the Board and its Sub-Groups
and contributed to the overall success of the Board during the year. We have focused on the voice of
the individual and actively promoted the principles of Making Safeguarding Personal, which permeate
through the Board’s strategic aims. As a result in 2021/22, 100% of the respondents in Redcar and
Cleveland when asked, said that they felt listened to during the safeguarding process and 93% felt
safer at the end of the process.

Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council (SBC) has implemented a Making Safeguarding Personal
(MSP) approach into our practice, so the voice of service users and carers are heard and
strengthened. As part of joint-up and collaborative working we are committed to use locally agreed
processes, such as the Team Around the Individual (TATI) with the emphasis on sharing information
between agencies in order to agree and achieve the best possible outcomes for some of the most
vulnerable service users. During 2021/22, SARs and Learning Lessons Reviews resulted in valuable
learning and changes to our practice. SBC is committed to and continues to contribute towards
learning events, both for staff and local communities. One of our aims for 2022/23 is to have at least
one Adult Safeguarding Champion in each of the teams across Adult Services.

Healthwatch South Tees is committed to working with the TSAB in helping to keep our communities
safe. By working with the Board we feel we can better promote the Safeguarding processes which in
turn helps people feel more confident in raising concerns. We have found the training particularly
beneficial and now open this up to our own Board and volunteers.

Page 23

17 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk



Partner Activity 2021/22 Continued...

Cleveland Police have now fully embedded their Complex Exploitation Team (CET) who have ran
several successful operations over the last 12 months to safeguard vulnerable adults and identify the
perpetrators who exploit them. Following the methodology of Prepare, Prevent, Pursue, Protect &
Partnerships they continue to disrupt criminal networks and work with TSAB partners to intervene at
the earliest opportunity to safeguard the public.

Our Force Vulnerability Desk work closely with front line officers to support the initial response to
incidents of domestic abuse. This ensures that appropriate advice and guidance is provided, and
positive action is taken to arrest perpetrators and safeguard the victim and their families. The Domestic
Abuse Solutions Team (DAST) are embedded into the Specialist Domestic Abuse Team within the
Safeguarding Department and through Multi-Agency Tasking & Coordination (MATAC) and Multi-
Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) processes provide enhanced services to victims,
particularly those at greater risk of harm. Cleveland Police have seen a significant increase in the use
and granting of Domestic Violence Protection Notices/Orders which are used to provide protective
measures for victims and place conditions on perpetrators.

Our dedicated Vulnerable Adults (VA) team continue to work closely with Adult Social Care teams and
play a pivotal role in the safeguarding of vulnerable adults and subsequent joint investigations. The VA
Detective Chief Inspector works closely with TSAB, sitting on the SAR Sub-Group and is involved in all
reviews, ensuring any learning is identified and embedded into Police practice.

North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust has valued the support provided by TSAB during
the past year. The training sessions that have been carried out ensures that staff are continually kept
updated, the work with Trauma Informed Practice has enabled staff to better understand and support
people who may not choose to engage with services. The Team Around the Individual approach further
supports people who may need additional support, and ensures practitioners are able to escalate

concerns.

Our Priorities 2022-25

Following feedback from the Board's Development Session, the Strategic Business Plan will change
from an annual plan to a three-year plan, with the actions refreshed annually.

The priorities within the Strategic Plan have been developed and directly informed by the results of the
Annual Consultation Survey and feedback from service users, carers and professionals.

The Board’s strategic aims and objectives continue to be underpinned by the six safeguarding
principles: Empowerment, Protection, Proportionality, Prevention, Partnership and Accountability.

Joint Working People

We will develop a whole system approach to We will ensure the workforce is well trained,
safeguarding adults which is responsive to the supported and equipped to safeguard the most
individual’s needs, views and wishes. vulnerable people within our communities.

Communication Services

We will provide accessible and clear information, Services are commissioned and provided by
advice and support that helps people to our partners to meet the individual needs of

understand what abuse is, how to prevent abuse adults who are most at risk of abuse or neglect.
from happening, how to seek help and how to

engage with the work of the Board.

The Board’s Strategic Business Plan for 2022-25 can be viewed here:

https://www.tsab.org.uk/the-board/strategic-plan/
Page 24

18 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk



https://www.tsab.org.uk/the-board/strategic-plan/

A d = The Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards, under The

p pe naix Mental Capacity Act 2005, provide legal protection
for those individuals who are 18 years old and above
and who are, or may become deprived of their
liberty, in a hospital or care home.

Concerns and Section 42 Enquiries Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards
(DoLS) Applications

m Concerns " Section 42 Enquiries

Hartlepool
1298
1583
17 12 1186 1469 1357 1522
681 729
513
368 I
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Middlesbrough
1967
1596
1609
1074 1395 1501
897 1089
636
520
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Redcar & Cleveland

1943
1626
1528 1711 1702
1337 1501 1520
741 710
5I53 I - I

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Stockton-On-Tees

3080

2845 2028 2786
1299 1317 1384
1158
1041 1008
880
I I I :
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 209@99 25 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

19 | Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board | www.tsab.org.uk



www.tsab.org.uk

] . Teeswide Safeguarding
Kingsway House, Billingham, Stockton-On-Tees Adults Board

01642 527263

TeeswideSAB

0 TeeswideSAB

See it, report it!

If you suspect a neighbour, friend or family member is being neglected or abused,
or you need help yourself.

Call Cleveland Police 101 or 999 in an emergency.

Call your local Adult Social Care Team:

Hartlepool: 01429 523 390 iSPA@hartlepool.gov.uk

Middlesbrough: 01642 065 070 adultaccessteam@middlesbrough.gov.uk
Redcar & Cleveland: 01642 771 500 AccessAdultsTeam@redcar-cleveland.gov.uk
Stockton-on-Tees: 01642 527 764  FirstContactAdults@stockton.gov.uk

Evenings and Weekends: 01642 524 552


mailto:iSPA@hartlepool.gov.uk
mailto:adultaccessteam@middlesbrough.gov.uk
mailto:AccessAdultsTeam@redcar-cleveland.gov.uk
mailto:FirstContactAdults@stockton.gov.uk

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Glossary of Terms — Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board
Annual Report 2021/22

Ask ANI - The Ask for ANI (Action Needed Immediately) codeword scheme has been
developed by the Home Office to allow victims of domestic abuse to access support from the
safety of their local pharmacy. Participating pharmacies will display the Ask ANI logo. If a
person asks for ANI or a Safe Space, staff will give the person access to their consultation
room, where they can make a phone call to police, domestic abuse helpline or local support
service for example.

Care and Health Improvement Programme (CHIP) — is funded by the Local Government
Association (LGA) and the improvement programme is co-produced and delivered with the
Association of Directors of Adult Social Services (ADASS) in England. The CHIP provides
support for social care, integration and health including the transforming care programme for
autistic people and people with a learning disability.

Domestic Homicide Review (DHR) - a review held under Section 9 of the Domestic
Violence, Crime and Adults Act 2004 and is coordinated by the local Community Safety
Partnership. DHRs review the circumstances in which the death of a person aged 16 or over
has, or appears to have, resulted from violence, abuse or neglect by:

e aperson to whom they were related, or had been in an intimate personal relationship
with
or

e a member of the same household

DoLS (Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards) - are part of the Mental Capacity Act (MCA)
2005. The Safeguards aim to make sure that people in care homes and hospitals are looked
after in a way that does not inappropriately restrict their freedom. DoLS are soon to be
replaced with Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) which forms part of the MCA
Amendment Bill.

DVPN/DVPO (Domestic Violence Protection Notices/Orders) - Domestic Violence
Protection Notices (DVPN) and Domestic Violence Protection Orders (DVPO) aim to provide
victims with immediate protection following an incident of domestic violence and gives them
time to consider what to do next. Since implementation of the Domestic Abuse Act, these
have since changed to Domestic Abuse Protection Notices/Orders.

Learning Disability Mortality Review (LeDeR) — In May 2015 a LeDeR Programme was
established to learn from deaths of people with a learning disability to address the health
inequalities people with learning disabilities often face.

Making Safeguarding Personal (MSP) - is an initiative which aims to develop a person-
centred and outcomes focus to safeguarding work in supporting people to improve or resolve

their circumstances.

MSP is applicable to all agencies working with adults in relation to safeguarding, including
those at the initial stages of a Safeguarding Concern being identified.

Page 27



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

MARAC (Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference) - information sharing and action
planning meeting for victims of domestic abuse who are at risk of serious harm or death.

MATAC (Multi-Agency Tasking & Coordination) - to assess and plan interventions to
target and disrupt serial perpetrators of Domestic Abuse and/or support them to address
their behaviour.

Rapid Review — a methodology used to identify learning from a case quickly so that the
learning can be shared and relevant changes to practice can be made quickly.

RASC (Responding to and Addressing Serious Concerns) - a TSAB policy and
procedure which sets out the framework for dealing with serious concerns of care providers
on a multi-agency basis.

Safeguarding Champions - volunteers from a broad range of organisations that are far
reaching and able to link directly with the community and clients they support.

Safe Place Scheme - Safe Place Scheme locations are venues in the community where
people who need extra support can go if they need some help. This ‘help’ can range from a
phone call to home or help with directions.

The idea is that vulnerable people can use these venues if they are feeling unsafe, whilst out
in the community. Many who benefit from the scheme may never actually need to use it, but
the existence of the ‘Safe Place’ venues allows people to feel safer, and go out and about
more (live more independently).

SAR Quality Markers — The national SAR Quality Markers were developed by the Social
Care Institute for Excellence (SCIE) and are a tool to support people involved in
commissioning, conducting and quality-assuring SARs to know what good looks like.
Covering the whole process, they provide a consistent and robust approach to SARs.

Service User — someone who uses health and/or social care services.

Social Care Institute for Excellence (SCIE) - is a nationally recognised company who co-
produce and share the best available knowledge and evidence about what works in practice.
They contribute to the development of better care, support and safeguarding on a national
level.

TATI (Team Around the Individual) - a multi-agency approach to supporting work on
complex and/or high-risk cases, including but not limited to chaotic lifestyles, self-neglect,
hoarding, fire risk, alcohol & substance misuse.

Vicarious Trauma — is sometimes referred to as ‘secondary trauma’. Anyone who engages
empathetically with survivors of traumatic incidents can be affected and experience trauma
themselves through their connection with the person.

Twitter Impressions — is the number of times a Tweet has been seen.
Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) - are an internationally recognised set of

recommendations for improving web accessibility. They explain how to make digital services,
websites and apps accessible to everyone, including users with impairments to their:

Page 28



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

e vision - like severely sight impaired (blind), sight impaired (partially sighted) or
colour blind people

e hearing - like people who are deaf or hard of hearing

e mobility - like those who find it difficult to use a mouse or keyboard

o thinking and understanding - like people with dyslexia, autism or learning
difficulties

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

© 2022 Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board
QO 0 @ 0

Teeswide Safeguarding
Adults Board

TSAB Strategic Business Plan 2022-25




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Contents

LT = L Lo [ TP PRSP PUPRPUPPPPN
V2T 1 4 USROS
SE L =To I Tde [l o Lo I ol ST a1 o] 1= PP PP TPPPRPTPPPPPT

S0 F=1 o I = 01 1 =1

2 abed



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

What we do

We seek assurance that organisations work in partnership to deliver joined-up services that safeguard adults from abuse and neglect. The work
of the SAB is underpinned by the Care Act 2014. The core purpose of the Board is to:

* Ensure that local safeguarding arrangements are in place as defined by the Care Act 2014 and statutory guidance;
* Ensure that safeguarding practice is person-centred and outcome-focused,;

» Work collaboratively to prevent abuse and neglect where possible;

» Ensure agencies/individuals give timely and proportionate responses when abuse or neglect has occurred and

» Ensure that safeguarding practice is continuously improving and enhancing the quality of life of adults in the area.

Vision
Qgr safeguarding arrangements will effectively prevent and respond to adult abuse.

@e TSAB will seek assurance from statutory organisations and multi-agency partners that the following aims, objectives and actions are
delivered.

w
Safeguarding Principles
The safeguarding principles set out in the Care Act 2014 will underpin all aspects of safeguarding adults work across Tees.

Empowerment: Prevention: Proportionality:
| am asked what | want as the outcomes from | receive clear and simple information about what | am sure that the professionals will work in my
the safeguarding process and these directly abuse is, how to recognise the signs and what | interest, as | see them and they will only get involved
inform what happens can do to seek help. as much as needed.
Protection: Partnership: Accountability:
| get help and support to report abuse and | know that staff treat any personal and sensitive | understand the role of everyone involved in my life
neglect. | get help so that | am able to take part | information in confidence, only sharing what is and so do they.
in the safeguarding process to the extent to helpful and necessary. | am confident that
which | want. professionals will work together and with me to get
the best result for me.




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Board Priorities

Priority 1: Joint Working ~Aim: We will develop a whole system approach to safeguarding adults which is

responsive to individual’s needs, views and wishes
Objectives: We will

=

Ensure Board partners work together in an effective manner to protect adults from all forms of abuse and neglect.

2. Consider and act upon the impact of new legislation on safeguarding practice, for example, Liberty Protection Safeguards, Domestic Abuse
Act 2021.

3. Engage and Collaborate with the Local Safeguarding Children Partnerships, Community Safety Partnerships, Domestic Abuse Steering
Groups, Health and Well-being Boards and Strategic Vulnerable, Exploited, Missing and Trafficked Group (VEMT) to deliver joint priorities
and objectives.

4. Engage and Collaborate with the multi-partnership and multi-agency development work regarding Missing Adults, Transitions, Contextual
Safeguarding and Adult Sexual Exploitation.

5. Further embed trauma informed practice, strengths based and person-centered approaches to all safeguarding adults’ work.

2@2-23 Actions: We will do this by Lead
Q
al. Striving towards the implementation of a consistent Teeswide Team Around the Individual (TATI) Statutory Partners and OL
N approach to the management of high-risk and complex cases. o
2. In conjunction with service users and carers review, existing and, where appropriate and PPP Task and Finish Group/ OL

necessary, develop new policy, procedure and guidance to incorporate updated or new legislation
and statutory guidance.

3. Working with relevant partners, partnerships and user groups to contribute towards the Relevant Partnerships, with
development of a ‘Missing Adults’ protocol, Transitions procedures, Contextual Safeguarding work, support from OL and TSAB
and an Adult Sexual Exploitation Strategy. Business Unit

4. Delivering an effective learning, training and development programme guided by learning from
Safeguarding Adults Reviews to include trauma informed practice and contextual safeguarding. LTD

5. Developing a suite of tools and resources to embed trauma informed practice in adult safeguarding. LTD and CE

Assurance Methods Impact/ outcomes

Quality Assurance Framework (QAF) / self- Adults at risk of or experiencing abuse and / or neglect will be confident that professionals will
audit tool, performance reports, multi- work together and with them to achieve the best possible outcomes for them.

agency audits, surveys, other partnership Evidence that TSAB is and has worked effectively with partnerships operating within and
plans, training plan, impact assessments, across the Tees area to provide the best and most efficient services possible for individuals in
feedback from adults need and across our communities.

4



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Priority 2: People Aim: We will ensure the workforce is well trained, supported and equipped to safeguard

the most vulnerable people within our communities

Objectives: We will

adults at risk.
Training Strategy.

and with consideration of vicarious trauma.

1. Strengthen professionals’ understanding of the legislative framework and trauma informed practice to ensure the best outcomes for
2. Seek assurance from partners that staff are provided with single agency Safeguarding Adults training in accordance with the TSAB
3. Seek assurance from partners that staff are provided with support, particularly in relation to the management of high risk/complex cases

4. Learn from the findings of local, regional and national Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SAR) and Learning Lessons Reviews (LLR), and
applicable Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHR), and Safeguarding Children Practice Reviews (SCPR) and implement action plans.

2022-23 Actions: We will do this by Lead
0
8 1. Developing and delivering the TSAB Training Plan to align with TSAB priorities, ensuring that the LTD
@  voice of people with lived experience of abuse or neglect is included in resources and events.
82. Reviewing and further developing the Quality Assurance Framework/ Self-Audit tool to seek PAQ
assurance from partners on the training and support provided to their staff.
3. Developing and implementing action plans for all SARs and LLRs, applicable DHRs and SCPRs. SAR
4. Sharing the learning from reviews across partner agencies and seeking assurance that the learning SAR/LTD
has been embedded into practice.
5. Appropriately review learning from SARs and LLRs to ensure it remains embedded in practice SAR/LTD
Assurance Methods Impact/ outcomes
QAF / self-audit tool, surveys, website hits, Adults at risk of or experiencing abuse and/or neglect will have confidence that
training evaluations, multi-agency audits, professionals will be involved only as far as is reasonable, proportionate, justifiable and
impact assessments necessary and always work in their best interest.




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Priority 3: Communication

Aim: We will provide accessible and clear information, advice and support that helps
people to understand what abuse is, how to prevent abuse from happening, how to seek
help and how to engage with the work of the Board

Objectives: We will

Safeguarding across Teesside.

actively inform what happens.

1. Establish mechanisms that enable adults, their families, and their carers to better inform the future direction and priorities of Adult
2. Ensure adults who use safeguarding services are asked what they want as outcomes from the safeguarding process and that their views

3. Communicate with and seek feedback from adults, families, and carers to ensure safeguarding responses are the least intrusive possible
and proportionate to the risk(s) presented.

4. Further develop the Safeguarding Champions initiative to improve engagement with local communities, harder to reach groups, the seldom
heard and to create stronger links with the community and voluntary sector.

5. Improve information sharing across and between agencies to ensure the best outcomes for adults using safeguarding services.

2%22-23 Actions: We will do this by Lead
«Q
M 1. Developing tools and processes to assist with seeking feedback from adults and their carers. CE
82. Monitoring and developing the TSAB Performance Indicators relating to outcomes. PAQ
3. Delivering a Communication and Engagement plan, including awareness raising and ‘Spotlight On’ CE
campaigns which focuses on prevention and engages with the general public, hard to reach
groups, the seldom heard and professionals.
4. Building on the Safeguarding Champions initiative to increase the number of champions across a CE
range of services.
5. Reminding professionals of information sharing arrangements through newsletters, bulletins and CE/LTD
training.

Assurance Methods

Performance Indicators, annual CE report,
performance reports, QAF/Self-audit tool,
multi-agency audits, feedback from focus
groups, feedback from individuals, families
and carers

Impact/ outcomes
People will receive clear and simple information about what abuse is, how to recognise the
signs and how to seek help.




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Priority 4: Services Aim: Services are commissioned and provided by our partners to meet the individual
needs of adults who are most at risk of abuse or neglect

Objectives: We will

1. Ensure that adults at risk of neglect and/or abuse can access support services and schemes such as the Safe Place Scheme and Ask
ANI.

2. Review the services and support available across Tees which aim to reduce the impact of loneliness and isolation on vulnerable
people.

3. Seek regular assurance from our partners on the safe commissioning and delivery of services.

4. Improve our performance monitoring processes and systems to obtain accurate, current and validated information.

2022-23 Actions: We will do this by

1. Reviewing the ‘Find Support in your Area’ page on the TSAB website to ensure all informationisup | CE
to date and accurate.

g-? 2. Establishing a task and finish group to undertake work relating to reducing loneliness and isolation. oL
i@ 3. Delivering the annual Quality Assurance programme, which includes the Quality Assurance PAQ/OL
(D Framework/ self-audit tool and multi-agency case audits.
ﬂ 4. Implementing the Power Bi system to produce high quality performance reports which will support PAQ
the analysis and further development of multi-agency safeguarding practice.
Assurance Methods Impact/ outcomes
QAF/Self-audit tool, TSAB reports, Adults at risk of or experiencing abuse and/or neglect will have access to a range of high
performance reports, multi-agency audits, quality services and support that meet their individual needs.

assurance reports to TSAB, feedback from
adults, their families and carers, Responding
to and Addressing Serious Concerns
(RASC) reports

Sub-Groups’ key: Communication and Engagement (CE), Learning, Training and Development (LTD), Operational Leads (OL), Performance,
Audit and Quality (PAQ), Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR), Policy, Procedure & Practice (PPP).



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes - Adult Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel - 2 November 2022
	4 Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board (TSAB) Annual Report 2021/22 and Strategic Business Plan 2022-25
	Glossary
	Strategic Business Plan 2022-25


